
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  City Council Workshop & Meeting   
     January 28, 2019 

   Agenda 
 

 
                                                                                                                
5:30 P.M.  City Council Workshop 

A. Citizen Petition to amend Chapter 60, Sec. 60-145 (b) (17) Special Exception Use Regulations – 

Audrey Knight (15 minutes) 

B. Budget Presentation – Jill Eastman and Peter Crichton (20 minutes) 

C. Chestnut Street – Kris Bennett (15 minutes) 

D. Executive Session-Economic Development (Gracelawn CEA), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C) – (30 

minutes) 

7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting - Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Lasagna 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items - None 
 

II.          Minutes 

• January 7, 2019 Regular Council Meeting 

• January 23, 2019 Special Council Meeting 
 

III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions  

• Communications – Mayor Levesque’s State of the City Address 

• Presentations – Swearing in Ceremony (Deputy Chief of Police, Tim Cougle and Deputy Chief of 
Fire, Matt Fifield)  

• Communication – Auburn Business Development Corporation (ABDC) Update  

• Communication – Assessing Department Update (Karen Scammon) 
 

IV. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly 
related to City business which is not on this agenda.   

                     
V.          Unfinished Business  
 
1. Public Hearing on Order 04-01072019 

Authorizing the discontinuance of Niskayuna Street.  

 
VI.      New Business 
 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

1. Order 09-01282019 
Approving the Liquor License and Special Amusement permit for SXE LLC, DBA Side by Each Brewing Co. 
located at 1110 Minot Avenue. Public hearing. 
 

2. Order 10-01282019 
Appointing Brian Carrier as a full member of the Planning Board with a term expiration of 1/1/2020. 
Council may enter into executive session, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Sec. 406(6)(A). 

 
3. Order 11-01282019 

Appointing Stephen Martelli as a full member of the Planning Board with a term expiration of 1/1/2022. 
Council may enter into executive session, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Sec. 406(6)(A). 

 
4. Order 12-01282019 

Appointing Paula Curtis-Everett To the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board with a term expiration of 
10/01/2019. 
Council may enter into executive session, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Sec. 406(6)(A). 

 
5. Order 13-01282019 

Appointing Michael Thurston To the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board with a term expiration of 
10/01/2019. 
Council may enter into executive session, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Sec. 406(6)(A). 

 
6. Order 14-01282019 

Re-appointing Dana Staples to the Complete Streets Committee with a term expiration of 1/1/2022. 
Council may enter into executive session, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Sec. 406(6)(A). 

 
7. Order 15-01282019 

Appointing R. Wayne Werts as a member of the LA 911 Committee with a term expiration of 1/1/2022. 
Council may enter into executive session, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Sec. 406(6)(A). 
 

8. Order 16-01282019  
Re-appointing Karen Scammon as Auburn’s City Assessor with a term expiration of January 31, 2021. 
 

VII. Reports 
a.  Mayor’s Report  

b. City Councilors’ Reports   

c. City Manager Report  

d. Finance Director, Jill Eastman – December 2018 Monthly Finance Reports 

VIII.      Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related 
to City business which is not on this agenda. 

 
IX. Executive Session  
 
X. Adjournment 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    January 28, 2019 
 
Author:  Audrey Knight, AICP, City Planner 
 

Subject:  Planning Board recommendation regarding citizen petition to amend Chapter 60, Sec.60-145 (b) (17) Special 
Exception Use Regulations in the Agriculture and Resource Protection District. 
 
Information:  Members of the Taylor Pond Association filed a petition on October 5, 2018 to prohibit certain uses from 
being permitted in the AG zone by Special Exception in the Lake Auburn and Taylor Pond watersheds in order to protect 
water quality and the environment.  

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None.     
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Review the petition, the Planning Board discussion and recommended action, City Council 
e-mail communications and schedule for public hearing.      
 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  This item was on the November 13, 2018 Planning Board agenda for public hearing, 
however with one recusal a quorum was not reached.  Members from the public spoke, no deliberation was held, and 
the item was noticed for December 11, 2018.   A 90-minute Public Hearing was held on the petition December 11, 2018, 
with more than 20 residents in attendance, including City Council members, with a unanimous decision to recommend 
denial of the petition.    Special Exception (17) was a text amendment initiated by City Council at its April 3, 2017 
meeting.  The Planning Board held a public hearing on the item May 9, 2017 and recommended Approval to City Council.  
City Council public hearing and first reading of the text amendment June 5, 2017, and second reading and adoption June 
19, 2017, by Ordinance 06-06052017. 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:          
 

Attachments: E-Mail from Robert Hayes and Jason Levesque; Planning Board Report; Planning Board Meeting Minutes 
12.11.18; Planning Board Staff Report, 12.11.18; Citizen Petition; 2017 Staff Report creating Special Exception (17) and 
Council adopting ordinance.   
 



















































































 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    1-28-19 
 
Author:  Peter Crichton, City Manager 
 

Subject:  Budget Presentation Workshop 
 
Information:  The Department Directors will have submitted their CIP and Operating Budget requests by the end of this 
month. Our budgeting process is starting earlier than what the City has done in the past. This Monday the Finance 
Director Jill Eastman and I will be presenting information on the upcoming FY20 budget, including factors affecting the 
budget, potential budget drivers, the budget timeline, property valuation growth and how that is impacted by 
exemptions, as well as reimbursements.   
 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None, at this time.  
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Review and Discussion.   
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: None 
 

 
City Manager Recommendations:  
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.              
 

 
Attachments:  Electronic version of presentation.  
 



FY20 
BUDGET
A FIRST GLANCE



2014 2015                                2016                               2017                                 2018

TOTAL VALUE  |  FY14-FY18
TOTAL CITY VALUE WITHOUT EXEMPTIONS



IMPACT
FACTORS THAT IMPACT CITY’S VALUATION

Homestead Exemption
Personal property depreciation
BETE (Business Equipment Tax Exemption)



IMPACT NEGATIVE IMPACT ON VALUATION

TOTAL VALUATION AFTER EXEMPTIONS

2014 2015                                2016                             2017                                2018 

$1.96B



IMPACT

VALUE WITHOUT EXEMPTIONS

VALUE AFTER EXEMPTIONS

$1.98B
$1.96B

19.7% LOSS 24% LOSS

2014 2015                                2016                             2017                                2018 



IMPACT

EXEMPTIONS GREW BY $132 MILLION

$
4

8
6

M

$
6

1
9

M

EXEMPTIONS OUTPACING NEW GROWTH



BUILDING
A BUDGET



BUILDING A BUDGET
HOW THE PIECES FIT TOGETHER

PERSONNEL
47.50%

DEBT 
SERVICE
15.58%

TRANSFER 
TO TIF
7.09%

OTHER
COSTS
5.60%

COUNTY 
TAX
5.60%

UTILITIES
4.20%

SOLID 
WASTE 
DISPOSAL
2.30%

WRKRS 
COMP
1.35%

EMERG.
RESERVE
1.00%

TAX SHRG.
0.63%

JOINT 
SERVICES
3.47%



OTHER 
FACTORS
POTENTIAL BUDGET DRIVERS

FY20



OTHER FACTORS
POTENTIAL BUDGET IMPACTS

Compensation Study
Municipal Revenue Sharing
Local Option Sales Tax
Joint Services
Strategic Plan Implementation



CIP – DEPARTMENT REQUESTS – Mid-January

DEPT OPERATING BUDGETS – End of January

MGR./DEPT. HEAD MEETINGS - February

DRAFT CIP PRESENTATION – March [W/ASD]

DRAFT MANAGER’S BUDGET – March

PRESENT BUDGET – April [W/ASD]

GENERAL BUDGET TIMELINE



WORKPLAN
TYING IT ALL TOGETHER



WORKPLAN 
FOCUS 
AREAS



DEPARTMENT PROFILE  |  CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE   
 
Department Head Peter Crichton  
 
Address/Phone/Website  
60 Court Street, Auburn, Maine 04210 | 207.333.6601  |  www.auburnmaine.gov  
 
Department Mission/Vision To be one of the best small cities in America.  
 
History of the Department Auburn was first settled in 1786 as part of Bakerstown, renamed 
Poland when it was incorporated by the Massachusetts General Court in 1795. It was then part 
of Minot, formed from parts of Poland and incorporated in 1802. Auburn would itself be 
formed from parts of Minot and incorporated on February 24, 1842. The name was apparently 
inspired by "Auburn," a village (real or fictitious) featured in the 1770 poem "The Deserted 
Village" by Oliver Goldsmith. Originally part of Cumberland County, the town became county 
seat of Androscoggin County at its creation in 1854. By annexing land from towns around it, 
including part of Poland in 1852, Minot in 1873, and all of Danville (first called Pejepscot) in 
1867, Auburn grew geographically into one of Maine's largest municipalities. Incorporated a 
city on February 22, 1869, Auburn in 1917 would be the first city in the state to adopt a council‐
manager form of government.  
 
Auburn is divided up into five wards. The city's governing body is a City Council, consisting of a 
mayor and seven councilmembers (one from each of the five wards, and two elected at large). 
The mayor is elected at large. The City Manager is appointed by the City Council and shall be 
the administrative head of the City government and shall be responsible to the City Council for 
the administration of all departments other than the Department of Education.  
 
Number of Personnel (4) City Manager, Assistant City Manager, Communications & Compliance 
Manager, and Executive Assistant.  
 
Who Do You Serve? The Auburn City Council and all citizens.  
 
Connections with Other Departments The administrative head of all city departments.  
 

Community Partnerships School Committee, LA 911, Auburn Public Library, City of Lewiston, 

Androscoggin County, Auburn & Lewiston Airport, Lewiston Auburn Transit Committee (LATC), 

LA Arts, Androscoggin Valley Council of Government (AVCOG), Androscoggin County, 

Androscoggin Transportation Resource Center (ATRC), Auburn Business Development Corp 

(ABDC), Auburn Housing Authority, Auburn Sewer District, Auburn Water District, Lewiston‐

Auburn Railroad Company (LARC), L/A Water Pollution Control Authority, and Maine Waste to 

Energy. 



Short‐Term Goals  
[0‐1 years/current budget] 

Cultivate a well‐balanced, stable and effective city government model.  
Complete the Strategic Plan and begin implementation upon adoption by the city council.  
Support Auburn's 150th Celebration with leadership, staff, and resources.  
Present the city budget to the city council for adoption.  
Review and update all policies and procedures for the City of Auburn.  
Complete an inventory of all city assets to include maintenance and replacement schedules.  
Partner with the Auburn School Department to build the new high school. 

 

Mid‐Term Goals  
[1‐5 years] 

Initiate 2020 Comprehensive Plan.  
Conduct annual reviews of the adopted Strategic Plan.  
Strengthen community partners and key stakeholders.  
Complete an analysis of all city infrastructures to include maintenance and replacement 
schedules.  
Create a marketing team to promote, brand, and grow the City of Auburn.  
Identify regional opportunities to strengthen services and reduce costs.  
Create a culture which supports and empowers employees and inspires excellence. 

 

Long‐Term Goals  
[5‐10 years] 

Assist the city council with forming a charter review commission.  
Establish Auburn as the premiere destination for Sports Tourism in the State of Maine.  
Meet or exceed benchmarks identified in 2020 Comprehensive Plan. 



DEPARTMENT PROFILE  |  FINANCE DEPARTMENT   
 
Department Head Jill Eastman 
 
Address/Phone/Website 60 Court St/333-6601 ext 1402/auburnmaine.gov 
 
Department Mission/Vision The Financial Services Department is “Committed to supporting 
internal and external customers with timely and accurate information, and the safekeeping of 
the City’s assets.” 
 
History of the Department In 1987, Finance of a Finance Director, Purchasing Agent, Payroll 
Clerk, part-time Accounts Payable Clerk, Tax Collector, two full time Tax Clerks, one part-time 
Tax Clerk and a Maintenance Person. In 1989 the new position of Accounting Manager was 
created. In 1994 the two part-time positions were made full time and the Accounting Managers 
position was eliminated. Finance staffing remained the same until 2010, when the Purchasing 
Agent position was eliminated. During the 2012-2013 budget the City Council budgeted to add 
a Facilities/Purchasing Manager and this position was filled in November 2012. The Assessing 
Department was moved under Finance as of the FY 15-16 budget. Staffing has remained the 
same since then. 
 
Number of Personnel Twelve full time staff. 
 
Who Do You Serve? The public and all departments and staff. 
 
Connections with Other Departments  
We work very closely with all City Departments including the School Department. 
 
Community Partnerships  
Androscoggin Bank, TD Bank, Mechanic Savings Bank and Norway Savings Bank.  

 
Short-Term Goals  
[0-1 years/current budget] 

Keep up with technology by maintaining and upgrading our current software. 
Maximize return on City's Investments while following the Investment Policy. 
Continue cross-training with City Clerk staff 

 
Mid-Term Goals  
[1-5 years] 

Secession Planning and Implementation 
Continue to implement new GASB rules in order to maintain Certificate of Excellence in 
Financial Reporting. 
Review internal policies and update if necessary, to maintain proper internal controls. 

 
 



DEPARTMENT PROFILE  |  CITY CLERK’S OFFICE   
 
Department Head Susan Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 
Address/Phone/Website  
60 Court Street, Auburn, ME 04210 - Phone 333-6601, ext. 1126  
 
Department Mission/Vision The City Clerk’s office is committed to providing excellent 
customer service while accurately maintaining city records and overseeing the election process.  
 
History of the Department Our office is often the first point of contact for visitors of the City. 
We welcome visitors coming into Auburn Hall providing them with direction & information. 
We're responsible for filing & maintaining vital statistic records for the City (births, deaths, and 
marriages). The City Clerk attends meetings of the Council and is responsible for the 
preparation of agendas, recording and filing of minutes, Orders, Resolves, and Ordinances that 
the City Council has acted upon and making sure that our Code of Ordinances are up to date. 
We are responsible for the administration and issuance of business licenses/permits for the 
City. We maintain information, term expirations and recruiting volunteers to serve on our 
boards and committees. Another major function of this office is the coordination and 
administration of elections and voter registration for the City which requires adherence to local, 
State, and Federal laws. 
 
Number of Personnel 3 full time employees 
 
Who Do You Serve? Auburn residents, voters, callers, and visitors of the City, various city staff 
and the City Council. 
 
Connections with Other Departments We work with most departments in some capacity, 
however we work closely with the Tax Office (cross training), Police, Fire, and Code, and 
Finance (business licensing), Department Directors, the School Department, City Manager's 
office and the City Council. 
 

Community Partnerships Funeral homes, the City of Lewiston Clerk staff, the Secretary of 

State's Office (Elections Division), DHHS Vital Records staff, Maine Town and City Clerks' 

Association, Maine Bureau of Liquor Licensing 

  



Short-Term Goals  
[0-1 years/current budget] 

Continue with professional training and development to enhance skills and to stay informed 
and up to date on State, Federal, and local laws and to achieve and/or maintain certification. 
Devoting the time needed for business licensing to help to ensure the health and safety of 
citizens and visitors in our City as well as maintaining a business friendly reputation. 
To enhance communication, information sharing, and greater transparency. 
To continue to promote a positive customer service experience for our customers.  
To create new and improved processes in order to gain efficiencies while also keeping in 
compliance with City, State, and Federal laws.  
Succession planning. 
Ensure that we are meeting our statutory obligations and deadlines. 
Continue our cross-training efforts with the Tax office. 

 
Mid-Term Goals  
[1-5 years] 

Preservation/restoration of vital records of the City 
Succession planning. 
To consolidate to one polling place. There are several reasons for wanting to do so; 

1. School safety - to reduce or eliminate the use of Schools. 
2. Eliminate voter confusion - at every election a number of voters are not certain where 
they vote and often times show up at the wrong polling place. With one polling place, 
that would no longer be an issue. 
3. Less chance of error when completing paperwork because Clerk staff would be at the 
polling place for the entire day.  
4. It is very difficult for a staff of 3 to be available at 5 polling places, central processing 
of absentee ballots, and the Clerk's office when issues arise. 
5. Cost savings - $1,100 savings per election for programming the AVS machines (we 
would be able to reduce the number of AVS machines from 5 to 1), and a savings of 
$950 or more per election for temporary election staff, depending on the type of 
election. 
6. Gain efficiencies while maintaining the integrity of the election process.  
7. May reduce some of the staffing issues we currently run into by trying to fully staff all 
5 polling places and central processing.  

Continue with professional training and development to enhance skills and to stay informed 
and up to date on State, Federal, and local laws and to achieve and/or maintain certification. 
Provide a single, adequate, secure location for election equipment.   

 
Long-Term Goals  
[5-10 years] 

Continue the preservation/restoration of records until complete. 
Continue with professional training and development to enhance skills and to stay informed 
and up to date on State, Federal, and local laws and to achieve and/or maintain certification. 
Succession planning. 



DEPARTMENT PROFILE  |  POLICE DEPARTMENT   
 
Department Head Chief Jason D. Moen 
 
Address/Phone/Website  60 Court St. / 207-333-6650 / www.auburnpd.com 
 
Department Mission/Vision  
OUR MISSION - To prevent crime and protect our community 
OUR VISION - To be community focused in all that we do 
OUR VALUES - Honor, excellence, loyalty & professionalism 
OUR MOTTO - Expect excellence 
 
History of the Department  
The Auburn Police Department is a “Gold Standard” Nationally Accredited police department consisting of 
four divisions; Administration, Patrol, Support Services and Criminal Investigations. The department 
responds to an average of 27,000 calls for service annually. Auburn’s 67 square miles of geography is divided 
into four police beats (zones). This allows officers to be assigned to specific zones in an effort to minimize 
response time. The average response time to a priority call is under four minutes. Annually the department 
averages 3200 incident reports taken, 775 physical arrests made, 1175 criminal summonses issued, and 
6300 traffic stops made. The department staggers staffing throughout the 24-hour day to match resources 
with call volume. 
 
Number of Personnel  55 sworn officers, 8.5 civilians. 
 
Who Do You Serve?  We serve everyone who lives, works and plays in Auburn. 
 
Connections with Other Departments  
We partner with all of the city departments on various levels and projects. 
 
Community Partnerships  
We have several community partnerships that include the Androscoggin Children's Advocacy Center, Safe 
Voices, Sexual Assault Prevention & Response Services and Healthy Androscoggin. Most prevalent is our 
partnership with the Auburn PAL Center in providing a safe haven for kids after school. The department has 
four neighborhood watch groups throughout the city.   



Short-Term Goals  
[0-1 years/current budget] 
Reduce Crime Rate 
Fill remaining two officer vacancies 
Vehicle Replacement (4) 
Mobile Data Terminal Replacement  
Locker Room Improvements  
Interview Room Recording Equipment Replacement  
Conference Room Chair Replacement 
 
Mid-Term Goals  
[1-5 years] 
Reduce Crime Rate & Improve Quality of Life within the city 
Maintain vehicle replacement schedule 
Add patrol officer and vehicle for Marijuana Ordinance Enforcement 
Firearms Replacement 
Assign Patrol Rifles to individual officers 
Cruiser lightbar replacement 
Purchase Radar Sign Trailer 
Replace all Ballistic Shields 
Replace Cruiser Camera Systems 
Replace Gym Equipment 
Implement Body Worn Cameras Program 
Complete design of new public safety building 
Create Community Action Team to address quality of life issues. (Additional Personnel) 
Implement Crime Free Multi-Housing Program 
Reclassify Professional Standards Sergeant Position to Lieutenant 
 
Long-Term Goals  
[5-10 years] 
Reduce Crime Rate & Improve Quality of Life within the city 
Complete construction of Public Safety Building 
Maintain Vehicle Replacement Schedule 
Replace traffic calming devices 



DEPARTMENT PROFILE  |  FIRE DEPARTMENT   
 
Department Head Chief Robert Chase 
 
Address/Phone/Website www.auburnmaine.gov/pages/government/fire-department 
 
Department Mission/Vision The Auburn Fire Department is dedicated to providing the 
community with the highest standard of service through prevention, training, education, 
suppression and emergency medical services.   We will provide this service with loyalty, 
integrity, accountability and teamwork. 
 
History of the Department The department responds from 3 stations, operating two fire 
engines, one Quint and two ambulances.  A minimum of 14 firefighter/paramedics are on duty 
24/7.  In 2014 Auburn Fire Department assumed the responsibility of providing EMS 
transporting services to the City of Auburn.  We respond to approximately 1200 fire 
emergencies and 3500 medical emergencies each year. 
 
Number of Personnel 64 Firefighter/Paramedics, 1 Fire Prevention Officer, 2 support staff, 
Chief, Deputy Chief, EMS Director 
 
Who Do You Serve? We serve and residents, visitors and businesses of Auburn and also support 
our neighboring communities. 
 
Connections with Other Departments  
The Fire Department works with planning and permitting in reviewing plans for new 
development as well as completing code inspections.  We work the closely with the Police 
Department, not only at emergency scenes, but also in emergency management and planning.  
Members of the department have also provided safety training for Auburn Town Hall 
employees, the Recreation Department, the Communications Center and the Police 
Department. 
 
Community Partnerships  
The department plays an active role in the Local Emergency Planning Committee and works 
regularly with the Androscoggin County Emergency Management Agency. Firefighters from 
Auburn serve on the COBRA team which is a State sponsored Hazardous Materials Response 
Team. We also partner with many businesses in support of our fire prevention programs.  We 
provide safety, CPR and fire extinguisher training to local businesses/organizations. 
  



Short-Term Goals  
[0-1 years/current budget] 

Continued implementation of department wide data collection software. 
Build on existing partnership with the Lewiston Fire Department to enhance response 
efficiencies in both cities. 
Improve equipment and apparatus reliability. 
 
Mid-Term Goals  
[1-5 years] 

Use data to improve operations to achieve service delivery objective 
Reach Service Deliver Objective of 
response time of 5 minutes or less 80% of the time. 
Become an Accredited Fire Department through the Center for Public Safety Excellence. 
Fund a safe and appropriate Fire Station for South Auburn Fire District. 
Make AFD an EMS training site, thereby improving our training level while also enhancing our 
ability to effectively recruit Firefighter/Paramedics. 
 

Long-Term Goals  
[5-10 years] 

Ensure facilities and equipment are sufficient to meet the needs of the changing community 
demographics. 
Make necessary facility modifications to allow for the placement of the apparatus and 
equipment in the most appropriate district(s).  This includes having the Quint in the more urban 
district and enhancing rural fire equipment in the more rural districts. 
Meet national response time standards.  Response time of 5 minutes or less 90% of the time 



DEPARTMENT PROFILE  |  PUBLIC WORKS   
 
Department Head Dan Goyette 
 
Address/Phone/Website  296 Gracelawn Road, (207) 333-6670, 
www.auburnmaine.gov/pages/government/public-works 
 
Department Mission/Vision  
Mission 
To provide public infrastructure and municipal services to protect and enrich the daily lives of the 
people who live, work and play in Auburn. 
Vision 
To exceed citizen expectations and strive for continuous improvement at all levels; to maintain and 
improve upon infrastructure; and to prepare for new growth, through planning, teamwork, 
communication and exceptional service. 
 
History of the Department  
The Highway Department moved to the Woodbury Brackett Municipal Garage on Gracelawn Road in 1971. 
The building has remained virtually the same since that time. The Engineering Department then combined 
with the Highway Department to form the Public Works Department in 1973. The Department then began 
an aggressive campaign to reconstruct the City road network but the oil embargo later in 1973 squashed 
these plans. The Department had to scrutinize its operations in order to determine what the large escalation 
in costs meant to services. In general, it was found that the more labor intensive maintenance activities 
(pothole patching) or requiring early response (snow plowing) were well suited to public works, while those 
programs requiring special skills (ledge blasting), special equipment (centerline striping) or involving 
economies of scale (paving), were better suited to the private sector. This remains the case today. In 2013, 
Public Works was redefined to include highway maintenance, fleet maintenance, parks maintenance and 
solid waste services. 
 
Number of Personnel  62 
 
Who Do You Serve?  The Department of Public Works serves both the general public and the other 
departments of the City. 
 
Connections with Other Departments  
The Department has close ties with virtually every City department. The Department maintains the Police 
Departments cruisers, moves voting equipment for the Clerk’s office, reviews plans for the Economic 
Development Department and maintains the athletic fields and parks for the Recreation Department to 
name a few. 
 
Community Partnerships  
The Department is very active within the community. Whether is working with the numerous road race 
committees to working with LATC on bus shelter repairs, the Department is open to all outside organizations 
in order to provide any assistance possible.  



Short-Term Goals  
[0-1 years/current budget] 
Maintain City Infrastructure  
Complete construction projects on Rodman Rd, N. River Rd, 5th St. 
To provide excellent fleet services for all city fleets 
Maintain City parks and cemeteries 
Construct a new warm storage building  
 

Mid-Term Goals  
[1-5 years] 
Attain Re-Accreditation  
Complete $4-5 million worth of street work per year. 
Update the PW fleet to the maximum extent possible in order to maximize the department’s efficiency 
Maintain the department’s cutting-edge maintenance practices. 

 
Long-Term Goals  
[5-10 years] 
Maintain Accreditation  
Complete $4-5 million worth of street work per year. 
Bring all city streets to a minimum PCR of 70 
Update city playground equipment 
Provide a water-related recreation area for residents 
 



DEPARTMENT PROFILE  |  ECONOMIC & 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT   
 
Department Head Michael Chammings 
 
Address/Phone/Website 207.333.6601 ext. 1218 Email: mchammings@auburnmaine.gov 
 
Department Mission/Vision The mission of the Auburn Economic and Community 
Development Department is to improve, maintain and protect a vibrant community 
environment and enhance the quality of life for our residents, businesses, customers and 
partners which also provides decent housing and expanding economic opportunities for 
persons of all income levels. 
 
We accomplish this endeavor by providing exceptional facilities, programs and services that our 
citizens desire in a fiscally responsible manner. 
 
History of the Department The Department of Economic & Community Development is 
responsible for the coordination, direction and leadership of all Economic and Community 
Development activities in the City. This includes oversight of the City’s Tax Increment Financing 
(TIF) Districts; protecting and improving the community’s environment, infrastructure and 
economy through land use policies and ordinances, as well as enforcement of certain public 
health and safety codes; administering land use, building, housing, plumbing and electrical 
codes and providing for the maintenance of streetlights and traffic signals; and administering 
the City’s C.D.B.G and Home programs to meet their national and local objectives. 
The Department of Economic & Community Development is close to revenue neutral (we utilize 
very little general fund tax revenue with a goal of zero). The majority of our funding is derived 
from: TIF funds, Federal funds (we are a federal entitlement community) and 
permit/application fees. 
 
Number of Personnel Fifteen Full-Time personnel. Three Divisions - One team 
 
Who Do You Serve? The Department serves current and potential Land and business owners, 
residents and the City government. 
 
Connections with Other Departments The Economic and Community Development 
Department works closely with all other City departments in the areas of permitting & licensing, 
public safety, electrical repairs, project financing and planning support. Provides administrative 
support to Engineering and Assessing. 
 

Community Partnerships AVCOG, Chamber of Commerce, Auburn Business Association, 

Economic and Community Development Council of Maine, Community Concepts, Androscoggin 

Land Trust, ABDC, LARR, Maine Real Estate & Development Association and Maine Biz. Each of 

these organizations is part of the network providing resources, information and development 

opportunities to our community. 



Short-Term Goals  

[0-1 years/current budget] 

High Speed internet new "Auburn 
Enterprise Center" industrial park. 
City Marketing 
Ag study & ordinance update 
Continue to assist our existing  
Redevelopment Projects along Entrance 
Corridors. 
Parking & walkability Improvement 
including Library  
Dilapidated Building Rehab  
Foreign-Trade Zone use and 
promotion/Foreign investment  
Streetlight Upgrades 
Housing Inventory/quality 
Freight rail expansion/Passenger rail 
New Auburn Village revitalization 
Opportunity Zone Utilization 
Maintain State Delegated Review Authority 
Efficiently process permit applications 
Infrastructure expansion 
 
Mid-Term Goals  
[1-5 years] 

Implementation of the  Auburn's 
comprehensive plan. 
Comprehensive  Plan Update 
CDBG 5 Yr plan 
City Marketing 
Streetlight Upgrades 
Wetland mitigation for the "Auburn 
Enterprise Center". 
New Auburn Village revitalization 
Dilapidated Buildings Rehab 
Parking & walkability Improvement 
Freight rail expansion 
Passenger rail 
Opportunity Zone Utilization 
Foreign-Trade Zone use and 
promotion/Foreign investment  
Housing Inventory/quality 
Provide improved access to recreational 
resources 
Commercial/industrial/residential infill 

Long-Term Goals  
[5-10 years] 

Complete the full wetland mitigation for the 
"Auburn Enterprise Center". 
Housing Inventory/quality 
Parking & walkability Improvement 
 
Implementation of new Comprehensive 
plan 
Freight rail Expansion 
Dilapidated Buildings Rehab 
Passenger rail 
Opportunity Zone Utilization 
Foreign-Trade Zone use and 
promotion/Foreign investment 
New Auburn Village revitalization 
Commercial/industrial/residential infill 
Infrastructure expansion 
Provide improved access to recreational 
resources 
Commercial/industrial/residential infill 



DEPARTMENT PROFILE  |  RECREATION & SPORTS 
FACILITIES   
 
Department Head Marc Gosselin 
 
Address/Phone/Website  48 Pettengill Park Rd; 333-6601 X2101; www.auburnrecreation.com 
 
Department Mission/Vision  
Promote a healthy lifestyle through various recreational activities with a focus on enhancing the 
wellbeing of all Auburn citizens. 

 
History of the Department  
Auburn has been home to some of the most unique recreational opportunities in Maine. Residents utilize 
diverse amenities for passive and organized recreational needs. Auburn Rec has maintained and enhanced 
offerings to help make the city a better place to work, live and play. In recent years, the city has invested in 
two new properties, the Ingersoll Turf Facility and the Norway Savings Bank Arena, to improve and heighten 
its impact. The goal being to keep the tradition of past programs, as well as opening the door for new and 
innovative ventures. Senior programming continues to grow with the addition of the Senior Community 
Center primarily utilized for senior programming but will also be available for other programs and rentals. 
Adult sports leagues fill both competitive and recreational needs for those involved, including 39 softball 
teams (men’s league and co-ed) and 49 basketball teams (men’s and women’s winter and summer 
combined). The Hasty Community Center had approximately 77,600 users over the course of the year. The 
addition of the Turf Facility and Arena has provided the opportunity to serve even more competitive and 
recreational needs serving not only residents, but visitors from in state and out of state. 

 
Number of Personnel  12 and multiple part time employees 
 
Who Do You Serve?  Customers/citizens of all ages in Auburn, through a variety of programs, amenities, 
community events. 
 
Connections with Other Departments  
The recreation department would not be as successful without the support of many departments within the 
city. The department works very closely with the City Manager’s Office, Public Works, Police, Fire, IT, 
Facilities and Purchasing. Many others contribute to the success each year. Maintaining strong relationships 
and creating a team environment will continue to improve recreational offerings and events. Most 
importantly, our relationship with the Public Works department for maintenance needs, outside space and 
field upkeep is vital to the continued growth of the department. 

 
Community Partnerships  
The Recreation and Sport Facilities Department solicits and maintains collaborative partnerships with local 
businesses large and small, public and private organizations and volunteers of all ages. These relationships 
support all facets of the department and special events. With the restructure of the Recreation Department, 
community partnerships will be streamlined to better identify the means to provide stable and ongoing 
support to improve programming and develop facilities. In addition, the department works with PAL and the 
School Department in order to be more efficient and streamline similar offerings and use of facilities.   



Short-Term Goals  
[0-1 years/current budget] 
1. Plan and maintain a comprehensive system of sustainable facilities, fields and spaces to high standards 
while providing attractive places for Auburn residents and visitors to use and enjoy. 
2. Plan, design and provide dynamic program offerings that Auburn residents will participate.  
3. Further reduce barriers for accessing programs, services and facilities. 
4. Identify underrepresented groups, like the senior population, and help them participate and feel 
connected to the Recreation and Sport Facilities department. 
5. Target events that can make effective use of the City of Auburn recreation and sport facilities that support 
local sport development, athlete development, community volunteerism, senior programming and 
corporate relationships. 
6. Expect and apply positive approaches that lead to favorable outcomes and high standards of service and 
performance while responding to the evolving the needs of the Auburn residents. 
7. Increase training and professional development opportunities. 

 
Mid-Term Goals  
[1-5 years] 
1. Design strategies to increase community awareness of parks and recreation resources to include the 
Ingersoll Turf Facility and Norway Savings Bank Arena. 
2. Maintain, communicate and grow inventories of programs, services, fields and facilities. 
3. Research and implement processes for evaluating programs, sport facilities and services for operational 
efficiency 
4. Steward natural areas in our community by discovering ways to conserve, enhance, and re-purpose 
natural areas while maintaining internal and external partnerships.  
5. Streamline the overall process in soliciting, acquiring and renewing corporate partnerships with the 
Recreation and Sport Facilities department. 
6. Develop effective and collaborative working relationships with local, state and national event right 
holders while identifying and pursuing sport tourism events based on alignment with the City of Auburn’s 
hosting capacity and event calendar. 
 
Long-Term Goals  
[5-10 years] 
1. Determine life cycles for Recreation, Turf Facility and Arena equipment and schedule maintenance, 
replacement or renovation funding. 
2. Design/build a new community center/rec facility to include department office space, meeting rooms, 
indoor track, pool, gym, tennis & racquetball courts. Also: Pickleball Courts, large event space, child care 
areas, fitness room, art room, kitchen.  
3. Design and build a third ice sheet that is a stadium layout to seat 2,500 spectators. Multipurpose: ice with 
ability to lay down sports floor/turf for other events.  
4. Design and build a clover of ball fields suited to host local, regional and national events.  
5. Outdoor recreation facility that includes softball fields, rectangle fields, and other trails and open spaces, 
including winter activities with snow mobile, snowshoe outdoor ice rinks and cross-country skiing.  
6. Develop stable, on-going funding for sports tourism activities; build relationships with corporate partners, 
having a clear understanding of diverse funding initiatives and actively pursuing opportunities to host major 
sport tourism events. 



DEPARTMENT PROFILE  |  HUMAN RESOURCES DEPT.   
 
Department Head Christine M. Mumau 
 
Address/Phone/Website  
60 Court Street, Auburn, ME  04210 / 207-333-6600 / www.auburnmaine.gov 
 
Department Mission/Vision The strategic plan of HR is to make sure the company has the best 
employees to fulfill the needs necessary of the other departments to help make the City of Auburn 
the best place for the citizens of Auburn to live, work and play.  This means recruiting the right 
people beginning with advertising and ending with new hires; training them to best prepare them 
to do their jobs from initial onboarding, job education, and performance evaluations; compensating 
them with pay and benefits to make it worth the while to stay with the City by administration and 
maintaining benefits along with pay increases; and to ensure that all is done in compliance within 
our own rules, 5 union contracts, as well as, state and federal laws and regulations, and safely with 
Workers Compensation. 
 
History of the Department The City of Auburn's HR Department has typically been a two person 
department for at least 30 years.  Prior to 2001, there was 1 full time position and a part timer. In 
2001, it switched to two full time positions.  Throughout the years, labor laws, pay and benefits has 
evolved, and continue to change yearly, whether it be child labor, to worker's compensation, to 
minimum wage, as well as the ACA requirements.  Benefits have evolved as well.  Health Insurance 
rates are very much reliant upon a health workforce.  Retirement has become extremely important, 
as retirees are living longer and simply need more than their social security checks to survive.  In 
2001, there were 7 benefits we administered.  Today, we have 14 benefits and additional 
supplemental plans available to employees.   Additionally, we've added a bargaining unit, for a total 
of 5 unions. 
 
Number of Personnel 2 
 
Who Do You Serve? The Departments and Employees of the City of Auburn.  2 people for 240 
Employees. 
 
Connections with Other Departments  
Connects with all Departments of the City, including school. 
 
Community Partnerships  
City of Lewiston Fire Department 
Auburn-Lewiston Airport 
Auburn Library 
Lewiston-Auburn 911 
Auburn School Department  



Short-Term Goals  
[0-1 years/current budget] 

Implementation of Munis Employee Self Service cutting down the need for paper on the path to a 
paperless workplace.  
Revision of policies. 
 
Mid-Term Goals  
[1-5 years] 

Going paperless. 
PTSD programs for Public Safety Employees. 
Cancer Prevention Measures in place for firefighters. 
Reducing Workers Comp costs through increased education and training. 
Health and Wellness Program rejuvenated and mandated to reduce health insurance costs. 
 
Long-Term Goals  
[5-10 years] 

Shape Award for all departments from Bureau of Labor Standards. 
Promote education programs to supply the workforce to provide jobs in the City of Auburn. 



DEPARTMENT PROFILE  |  INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY   
 
Department Head Paul Fraser 
 
Address/Phone/Website  
60 Court Street, Auburn, ME  04210 / 207-333-6601 X1011 / www.auburnmaine.gov 
 
Department Mission/Vision  
Leaders in technology -- transforming how departments connect, communicate, and collaborate. 
 
History of the Department  
The history of the department pretty closely matches the trends in technology since 1993 (when I came on 
board). Sometimes we’ve been ahead of the curve and sometimes we’ve lagged behind it. We’ve gone from 
UNIX-based terminals, through the explosion of the distributed PC environment, to our current “cloud-first” 
environment. I can provide additional details as an “oral history”, if anyone’s really interested, but I’m not 
writing it all down! 
 
Number of Personnel  
Five FTEs:  
Department Director  
GIS Administrator  
Database Administrator  
IT Technician  
Great Falls TV Manager 
 
Who Do You Serve?  
We serve all City Departments, and, through them, we indirectly serve the citizens of Auburn. 
 
Connections with Other Departments  
We work closely with all Departments equally, to support their technology needs. 
 
Community Partnerships  
Auburn IT has only limited direct contact with the outside community. The exceptions are our involvement 
in the City website and through the airing of City meetings and the Community Bulletin Board on Great Falls 
Television.  



Short-Term Goals  
[0-1 years/current budget] 
1.Transition to Microsoft Office 365  
Word, Excel, Outlook -- Exchange, One Drive, Sharepoint  
2.Transition to Software as a Service (SaaS)  
MUNIS, enerGov, Patriot, Lucity  
3.Transition to high speed (and more robust) INTERnet  
4.Transition to high speed Intranet  
5.Transition to Windows 10  
6.Adding Mobile Device Management  
7.PC purchases 
 
Mid-Term Goals  
[1-5 years] 
1.Penetration Testing/Mitigation  
2.Intrusion Detection System  
3.Phone Upgrade  
4.Expand GIS presence/staffing  
5.GIS as virtual scaffolding for linking city data sources  
6.Complete W10 transition (by 1/2020)  
7.Transition to GFTV 2.0 
 
Long-Term Goals  
[5-10 years] 
In this field, there’s not much value in projecting out much past five years. The technology that we’ll be 
using then hasn’t even come to our attention yet. It’s trendy to say “Smart City Initiative”, but since that 
could mean any of dozens of different directions, it’s risky to set it as a goal. 



DEPARTMENT PROFILE  |  HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES   
 
Department Head Holli Olivier, Director 
 
Address/Phone/Website  
60 Court Street, Auburn, ME  04210 / 207-333-6600 / www.auburnmaine.gov 
 
Department Mission/Vision The strategic plan of the Health & Social Services Department is to 
enable Auburn families to achieve self-sufficiency in a financially responsible way. This means to 
continue to assist individuals with job searches, encourage attendance at job trainings and events, 
and to promote adult education classes. For Asylum Seekers, this means requiring attendance at 
English classes, performance of workfare assignments, and assisting with obtaining work 
authorization cards. Ultimately, we help guide New Mainers into the workforce once they are 
allowed to do so.  We work together with State government to ensure that individuals and families 
in Auburn are not homeless or hungry. 
 
History of the Department The City of Auburn's Health & Social Services Department was originally 
a four-person department.  The department, at that time, included the health department.  The 
duties of that department were:  performing lice checks, administering flu shots and other 
vaccinations, inspecting restaurants and apartments, taking sanitation complaints, and informing 
the public about health problems in the community and how to stay safe.  This department's 
history is dependent upon the economy, housing availability, influx of "New Mainers" and natural 
disasters.  Our department is currently a department of 1 1/2 staff.  We assist all qualified 
individuals with housing, food, heat, and electricity.  In order to receive benefits, any able-bodied 
individuals must engage in our workfare program, perform job searches, attend job fairs, and 
attend English classes.  We assist, monitor and verify the progress of our clients on a weekly basis 
to determine if the individual is in compliance and eligible to continue to receive benefits.  Our 
department has a newly formed clothing bank, food pantry, and household pantry. Representatives 
of this department have strong backgrounds in public service work and work with a diverse 
population.  Ongoing trainings and seminars are required throughout the year to keep up-to-date 
on changing laws in order to be in compliance with State government. 
 
Number of Personnel 1.5 
 
Who Do You Serve? Needy individuals below the poverty level, asylum-seekers and refugees. 
 
Connections with Other Departments  
Community Development, Human Resources, Community Service Team, Finance Department, 
School Department. 
 
Community Partnerships  
Community Concepts / FedCap / Common Ties / The Immigrant Resource Center / Pine Tree Legal / 

DHHS / Hope Haven Gospel Mission / St. Martin de Porres homeless shelter / Safe Voices / St. 

Mary's Nutrition Center & food pantry / Lewiston General Assistance / Goodwill of Northern New 

England / New Beginnings / The United Way / Auburn Housing Authority  



Short-Term Goals  
[0-1 years/current budget] 

Attendance at workshops and seminars in order to be kept up-to-date with changing laws to be in 
compliance with State government. 
Require, monitor and verify workfare hours, English classes, job searches, and trainings. 
 
Mid-Term Goals  
[1-5 years] 

Promote educational programs and training to supply the workforce needed to fill job vacancies in 
the City of Auburn. 
Foster independence and self-sufficiency for all citizens. 

 
Long-Term Goals  
[5-10 years] 

To have a settled and stable diverse community that thrives in all aspects of business, education, 
and recreation. 
Moving inactive files (over 3 years old) to the Cloud. 
To streamline the process for Asylum Seekers to be able to obtain their work authorization cards 
before the obligatory 150- day wait period. 



DEPARTMENT PROFILE  |  L-A 9-1-1   
 
Department Head Paul M. LeClair, LA911 Director 
 
Address/Phone/Website  
552 Minot Ave, Auburn, ME 04210 / 207-786-5380 / http://www.auburnmaine.gov 
 
Department Mission/Vision  
It is the mission of the Lewiston Auburn 9-1-1 Communication Center to serve the public and the 
agencies we assist by handling requests efficiently, in a non-bias, courteous manner with the best-
trained professionals while striving towards our commitment to excellence. 
 
History of the Department  
In 1979, the Cities of Lewiston and Auburn created a jointly funded 911 Center. At that time, calls were still 
filtering through two call-taking centers/police dispatch centers, and two fire dispatch centers. A single 9-1-1 
call for help meant dispatchers had to make multiple calls to send fire and law enforcement to a scene, and 
even more calls if the situation proved large enough to require mutual aid from surrounding towns. It was a 
slow, inefficient process. 
 
In 1996, the Lewiston Auburn 911 Committee took dramatic steps to improve the speed and quality of 
service delivered to its citizens by consolidating all 9-1-1 and dispatching services under one roof by locating 
the communication center at 552 Minot Ave. That effort meant real-time information sharing between all 
public safety responders and quicker and more coordinated response plans. 
LA911 entered into a contractual agreement with Poland in 2010 to serve as Poland Fire and Rescue’s 
primary dispatch center, and 2013, Poland added a second agreement to extend those services to 9-1-1 call 
taking. 
 
Number of Personnel  28 
 
Who Do You Serve?  Lewiston and Auburn Police, Fire, and EMS and Poland Fire and EMS. 
 
Connections with Other Departments  
Records Management Software managed and supported by LA911 IT for all Auburn & Lewiston Police & Fire 
Agencies, the Androscoggin County Sheriffs Department, Mechanic Falls, Sabattus and Livermore Falls Police 
Departments and the Poland Fire & Rescue Department. Staff support of the Hazardous Materials Team. 
 
Community Partnerships  
Lewiston & Auburn Citizens Police Academies.  



Short-Term Goals  
[0-1 years/current budget] 
Implement Communications Center Radio Console Upgrade 
Implement Communications Equipment Shelter Upgrades and improve Connectivity between the five 
antenna sites that service our community. 
Coordinate and establish Back-up Communications Center needs with the Androscoggin County Dispatch 
Center 
 
Mid-Term Goals  
[1-5 years] 
Implement new Radio System to serve all Police & Fire Agencies.  
Upgrade Disaster Recovery equipment. 
Focus on retention of employees and broaden recruitment efforts. 
Maintain CALEA Accredidation 
 
Long-Term Goals  
[5-10 years] 
Implement construction of new LA911 Facility in conjunction with Auburn or Lewiston Public Safety 
building. 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    January 28, 2019 
 
Author:  Kris Bennett, Assistant City Engineer  
 

Subject:  Chestnut Street 
 
Information:   
 
The goal of this project is to calm traffic on Chestnut Street in front of the PAL Center.  Narrowing the roadway in front 
of the PAL Center to 23’ and installing a raised crosswalk and a speed table will result in slower speeds along Chestnut 
Street.  Parking would be eliminated in front of the PAL Center and relocated on the westerly side of the building, 
including a connection of Chestnut Street to Walnut Street. A fence is proposed to set a perimeter in the existing parking 
area as a proposed play area.  Other features include: sidewalk on westerly side of the PAL Center, paved driveway 
apron at the gravel parking area, pave in the rear of the PAL Center entrance, and rebuild the westerly PAL Center 
entrance walkway. 
 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: CDBG funding 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Discussion 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Previously brought to Council as a road closure and changed the scope after receiving 
feedback. 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:                    
 

Attachments:  Estimate for construction  
  Plan for construction 
             
 



Chestnut Street Traffic Calming & Parking Relocation

Bid Item Description Unit Bid Qnty Unit Cost Total

202.20 Remove Bituminous Concrete Surface SY 525 $1.75 $918.75

202.201 Sawcut Pavement LF 150 $2.50 $375.00

202.203 Pavement Butt Joints SY 100 $15.00 $1,500.00

203.20 Common Excavation CY 1,300 $13.00 $16,900.00

304.09 Aggregate Base Course - Type A CY 80 $22.00 $1,760.00

304.10 Aggregate Subbase Course - Type D CY 400 $18.00 $7,200.00

304.141 Aggregate Base Course – Type A (Parking/Driveway/Sidewalks) CY 370 $28.00 $10,360.00

403.209 Hot Mix Asphalt, Hand Place (Parking/Driveway/Sidewalk) TON 215 $130.00 $27,950.00

403.210 Hot Mix Asphalt, 9.5mm Surface TON 65 $130.00 $8,450.00

403.213 Hot Mix Asphalt, 12.5mm HMA Base TON 90 $115.00 $10,350.00

409.15 Bituminous Tack Coat. Applied GAL 60 $6.00 $360.00

603.159 12” Culvert Pipe Option III LF 90 $50.00 $4,500.00

603.1791 18" Culvert Pipe Connections EA 4 $350.00 $1,400.00

604.252 Catch Basin Type A5-C EA 4 $3,700.00 $14,800.00

607.18 Chain Link Fence - 5 foot LF 165 $25.00 $4,125.00

607.23 Chain Link Fence Gate EA 1 $300.00 $300.00

609.11 Vertical Curb Type 1 - Concrete LF 600 $20.00 $12,000.00

609.111 Vertical Curb Type 1 - Bituminous LF 40 $13.00 $520.00

615.08 Loam & Seed SY 500 $7.00 $3,500.00

619.1301 Bark Mulch CY 12 $85.00 $1,020.00

627.733 4" White Pavement Marking Lines LF 1,330 $0.30 $399.00

627.75 White Pavement Markings SF 150 $3.00 $450.00

652.36 Work Zone Traffic Control LS 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

659.10 Mobilization LS 1 $9,872.83 $9,872.83

$141,510.58

15% CDBG $21,226.59

TOTAL $162,737.17

This estimate is for building the 17 new parking spaces with 1' A Gravel and 3" HMA, build roadway connection of Chestnut 

and Walnut, remove parking out front of PAL Center and pave/install 5' fencing, install speed table and raised crosswalk with 

drainage connections. Expand paving at westerly PAL Center back entrance. Paved apron for gravel parking area.  Assume 

signage can be done in house. 



1. PARKING BUILDUP:

12"     -     TYPE A GRAVEL

2"       -    12.5mm BASE COURSE

1"       -     9.5mm SURFACE

2. SIDEWALK BUILDUP

12"     -     TYPE A GRAVEL

1"       -     9.5mm BASE COURSE

1"       -     9.5mm SURFACE

3. ROADWAY BUILDUP

15" -     TYPE D GRAVEL

3" -     TYPE A GRAVEL

2" -     12.5mm HMA BASE

1.5" -     9.5mm HMA SURFACE

18'

9'

1
2
"
 
H

D
P

E

TIE INTO EXISTING

18" HDPE SD ON

CURBLINE

REMOVE EXISTING PAVEMENT

SHIM WITH A-GRAVEL

PAVE WITH 2" 9.5mm HMA

17

SPEED TABLE

4' RAMP

2' SIDE RAMP

10' TABLE TOP

4" HMA

RAISED X-WALK

6' RAMP

10' TABLE TOP

4" HMA

NEW PAVED

PARKING SPACES.

KEEP WIDTH OF

ROAD AT 22'

BACK UP PAVEMENT

WITH GRAVEL FOR

SNOW STORAGE

23' CURB TO CURB

6' PAVED APRON FOR

PARKING ENTRANCE

REMOVE CONCRETE PADS

AND PAVE SIDEWALK

PAVE DRIVE ENTRANCE

AS DIRECTED

1
2
"
 
H

D

P

E

PARKING BUILDUP

SIDEWALK BUILDUP

ROADWAY BUILDUP

INSTALL FENCE

CONNECT TO EXISTING.

ADD GATE AS

DIRECTED

BARK MULCH AREAS



 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   January 28, 2019 
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Economic development (Gracelawn CEA), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (C). 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public 
discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council 
must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time 
that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the 
categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be conducted 

in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive session 

if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated litigation, 

settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional responsibility 
clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public agency or person at 
a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; consultation 

between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of 
examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, subsection 

1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  
 













 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  1-28-2019 
 
Author:  Eric J. Cousens, Deputy Director of Economic and Community Development  
 
Subject:  Discontinuance of Niskayuna Street from Turner to Center Street. 
 
Information:  Evergreen Subaru is located on Center Street and has acquired properties on both sides of Niskayuna 
Street under the name Quiz Kids LLC.  The Comprehensive plans supports the transition of this small residential area to 
commercial uses as properties are acquired by designating it as Business Transition District; The zoning has been 
changed over time in accordance with the plan.  There are two remaining parcels with frontage on Niskayuna Street that 
are not currently owned by Evergreen or Quiz Kids LLC.  One is owned by James and Suzanne Pittman and is under 
contract to be purchased by Quiz Kids LLC.  The other is owned by Suzanne Roy and has frontage on Niskayuna, Turner 
and Joline, with current driveway access from Joline.  The proposed petition will allow for the Roy Property to retain 
access potential from the portion of Niskayuna that it abuts.  All three property owners have agreed that the street 
discontinuance will not require damages from the reduced frontage on a City street; This will not waive their legal rights 
to appeal but it is a good indicator that they will not disagree with a zero-dollar damages finding of the Council.  The 
Council voted to start the process by issuing an Order of Discontinuance at the last meeting and the next step is to hold 
a public hearing with no action for at least 10 days.   

 
City Budgetary Impacts: The street discontinuance will eliminate the expenses to plow maintain and repair Niskayuna 
Street for the future.  The assessed value of the land will increase as it transitions from single-family homes to 
commercial use and there will be new opportunity to construct additional commercial buildings in the future.   

 
Staff Recommended Action: Hold a Public Hearing on the Order the discontinuance of Niskayuna Street; State law 
requires that we wait at least 10 days from the Hearing for final action.    
 
Previous Meetings and History: December 17, 2018 Workshop and January 7, 2019 Public Meeting on discontinuance.   
 
City Manager Comments:  

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:                   
 

Attachments:  
1. Public and Abutter Notices 
2. Order of Discontinuance 
3. Map of proposed Discontinuance 

 

















Stoneybrook Consultants, Inc.Stoneybrook Consultants, Inc.
P.O. Box 459 - Turner, Maine 04282 - (207) 224-0252P.O. Box 459 - Turner, Maine 04282 - (207) 224-0252



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  January 28, 2019                 Order: xx-01282019 
 

Author:  Kelsey Earle, License Specialist 
 

Subject:  Liquor License and Special Amusement Permit request for SXE LLC dba Side By Each Brewing Co. 
 

Information:  SXE LLC dba Side By Each Brewing Co. a new business, located 1110 Minot Avenue, applied for a 
Liquor License and Special Amusement Permit. Police, Fire, and Code have completed the necessary 
inspections and have granted approval. 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 
 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Public hearing and motion to approve the liquor license and special amusement 
permit. 
 

 

Previous Meetings and History: N/A 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:                     
 

Attachments:  

• Application 

• Background check 

• Public Notice 

• Order  
 

















Side By Each Brewing Co. 

----  725





625    100

725 CK

kearle
Stamp

kearle
Stamp

kearle
Stamp

kearle
Stamp

kearle
Typewritten Text
ok 1/8

kearle
Typewritten Text
ok 1/8















CITY OF AUBURN 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

A public hearing will be held by the Auburn City Council on Monday 

January 28, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter, in the 

Council Chambers of Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street, to consider the Liquor 

License and Special Amusement Permit Applications for: 

 

SXE LLC dba Side By Each Brewing Co. 

1110 Minot Avenue, Auburn, Maine 

 

All interested persons may appear and will be given the opportunity to be 

heard before final action is taken. 

 

  

 

 

 

 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 09-01282019 
 
 

Ordered, that the City Council hereby approves the Liquor License and Special Amusement 
Permit for SXE LLC dba Side By Each Brewing Co. located at 1110 Minot Avenue, Auburn, 
Maine. 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  January 28, 2019  Orders: 10-01282019 through 15-01282019  
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 
Subject:  Board and Committee Appointments 
 
The Appointment Committee met on January 16, 2019 to review applications and make their nominations for various 
boards and committees of the City as follows:  
 
Planning Board – Appointing Brian Carrier as a full member with a term expiration of 1/1/2020. 
Planning Board – Appointing Stephen Martelli as a full member with a term expiration of 1/1/2022. 
Parks & Recreation Advisory Board – Appointing Paula Curtis-Everett and Michael Thurston, both with a term expiration 
of 10/1/2019. 
Complete Streets Committee – Re-appointing Dana Staples with a term expiration of 1/1/2022. 
LA 911 – Appointing R. Wayne Werts with a term expiration of 1/1/2022. 
 
Council may enter into executive session pursuant to 1 MRSA Sec. 406(6)(A) to review applications or for further 
discussion before making appointments. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Motion to appoint members as recommended by the Appointment Committee. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: The Appointment Committee met on January 16, 2019 to make their nominations. 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.    Signature:          
 

 
Attachments:  
List of applicants 
List of vacancies 
Applications 
Orders 
 



 

VACANCIES 

 

LA 911 - (1 vacancy - with a term expiration of 1/1/2022) 

Board of Assessment Review - (2 vacancies - alternate positions. One with a term 
expiration of 10/1/2020, and one with a term expiration of 10/1/2022) 

Cable TV Advisory Committee - (2 vacancies - one with a term expiration of 6/1/2019, 
one with a term expiration of 6/1/2020) 

Citizens Advisory Committee - (9 vacancies - all with 6/30/2019 term expirations) 

Complete Streets Committee - (1 vacancy - with a term expiration of 1/1/2022) 

Conservation Commission - (1 vacancy - with a term expiration of 6/1/2020) 

Ethics Committee - (4 vacancies - one full member position with a term expiration of 
1/1/2021, one full member position with a term expiration of 1/1/2022, and two alternate 
positions both with term expirations of 1/1/2022) 

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - (2 vacancies - with term expirations of 
10/01/2019) 

Planning Board - (two full member positions - one with a term expiration of 1/1/2020, 
one with a term expiration of 1/1/2022) 

 

https://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/City_Clerk/9-1-1_Committee.pdf
https://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/City_Clerk/Board%20of%20Assessment2%20%20%20%205-18-2015.pdf
https://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/City_Clerk/A-L%20Cable%20TV%20Interlocal%20Agreement%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20AGREEMENT%2010%209%2015.pdf
https://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/City_Clerk/Citizen%20Participation%20Plan%202015%20%20final%204-7-2014.pdf
https://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/City_Clerk/DIVISION_6.___COMPLETE_STREETS_COMMITTEE.pdf
https://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/City_Clerk/CONSERVATION%20COMMISSION.pdf
https://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/City_Clerk/Ethics%20web%20description.pdf
https://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/City_Clerk/DIVISION_4._PARKS_AND_RECREATION_ADVISORY_BOARD.pdf
https://www.auburnmaine.gov/CMSContent/City_Clerk/Planning%20Board%20Purpose.pdf


Board Committee Applications

January 16, 2019

Board or Committee Ward Last Name First Name Address

9-1-1 Committee 2 Thurston Michael 643 Court Street

5 Werts R. Wayne 556 Pownal Road

Board of Assessment

Cable TV Advisory Board

Citizens Advisory Committee

Complete Streets Committee 5 Staples Dana 32 Greenfield Drive

Conservation Commission

Ethics Committee

Parks & Recreation Advisory 2 Curtis-Everett Paula 285 N. Auburn Road

2 Thurston Michael 643 Court Street

Planning Board 4 **Carrier Brian 32 Constellation Dr.

3 Engler John 8 Cushman Place #5

5 **Martelli Stephen 41 Broad Street #2

Sewer District (not yet posted) 3 Sheehan Charles 10 Amhurst Circle

* Indicates this applicant is seeking re-appointment

** Indicates this person is an associate/alternate member seeking full member status

















































Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 10-01282019 
  
 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following board and committee member 
as nominated by the Appointment Committee on 01/16/2019; 

 

Board or Committee Term Exp. Date Name  
Planning Board  1/1/2020 Brian Carrier (From associate to full 

member)  
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 11-01282019 
  
 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following board and committee member 
as nominated by the Appointment Committee on 01/16/2019; 

 

Board or Committee Term Exp. Date Name  
Planning Board 1/1/2022 Stephen Martelli (From associate to full 

member) 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 12-01282019 
  
 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following board and committee member 
as nominated by the Appointment Committee on 01/16/2019; 

 

Board or Committee Term Exp. Date Name  
Parks & Recreation Advisory 
Board 

10/1/2019 Paula Curtis-Everett (new appointment) 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 13-01282019 
  
 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following board and committee member 
as nominated by the Appointment Committee on 01/16/2019; 

 

Board or Committee Term Exp. Date Name  
Parks & Recreation Advisory 
Board 

10/1/2019 Michael Thurston (new appointment) 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 14-01282019 
  
 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following board and committee member 
as nominated by the Appointment Committee on 01/16/2019; 

 

Board or Committee Term Exp. Date Name  

Complete Streets Committee 1/1/2022 Dana Staples (re-appointment)  
 
 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 15-01282019 
  
 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following board and committee member 
as nominated by the Appointment Committee on 01/16/2019; 

 

Board or Committee Term Exp. Date Name  
LA 911 Committee  1/1/2022 R. Wayne Werts (new appointment) 

 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    January 28, 2019 Order: 16-01282019 
 
Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

Subject:  Appointment of the City Tax Assessor 
 
Information:  The appointment term for Karen Scammon, City Tax Assessor, expires 1/31/2019. The City is required to 
have a Tax Assessor to do the annual tax commitment and to perform other functions as required by State Statute. 
Section 2-255 of our City Ordinance states: 
 
“The Tax Assessor shall be appointed by the City Council on the recommendation of the City Manager. The Tax 
Assessor shall be appointed for a two-year term.” 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Motion to re-appoint Karen Scammon as the City Tax Assessor for a two-year term ending 
1/31/2021 as recommended by the City Manager. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: The last appointment was made two years ago at the 12/5/2016 Council meeting. 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:             
 

Attachments: Order 16-01282019 
 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

P a g e  1 | 1 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 16-01282019 
  

 
Ordered, that the City Council hereby re-appoints Karen Scammon as the City Tax Assessor for a two-
year term ending 1/31/2021 as recommended by the City Manager. 
 

 



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

 
 
 
 
 

TO:    Peter Crichton, City Manager 

FROM:   Jill Eastman, Finance Director 

REF:    December 2018 Financial Report 

DATE:  January 10, 2019 
 

The following is a discussion regarding the significant variances found in the City’s December financial 
report. Please note that although the monthly financial report contains amounts reported by the 
School Department, this discussion is limited to the City’s financial results and does not attempt to 
explain any variances for the School Department. 
 

The City has completed its sixth month of the current fiscal year. As a guideline for tracking purposes, 
revenues and expenditures should amount to approximately 50.0% of the annual budget.  However, 
not all costs and revenues are distributed evenly throughout the year; individual line items can vary 
based upon cyclical activity.    
 

Revenues 
 

Revenues collected through December 31st, including the school department were $44,890,467, or 
51.77%, of the budget. The municipal revenues including property taxes were $34,252,477, or 56.13% 
of the budget which is 1.03% higher than last year at this time. The accounts listed below are 
noteworthy. 

 

A. The current year tax revenue is at 57.62% as compared to 56.31% last year.  
 

B. Excise tax for the month of December is at 53.79%. This is a $74,606 increase from FY 
18. Our excise revenues for FY19 are 3.79% above projections as of December 31, 2018.  

 

C. State Revenue Sharing at the end of December is 50.05% or $845,687.  
 

Expenditures 
 
City expenditures through December 2018 were $22,586,631 or 55.5%, of the budget. This is 1.09% 
less than the same period last year. Noteworthy variances are: 
 

 



 2 

A. The operating departments are all in line with where they should be at this time. Several line 
items are paid quarterly, semi-annually or annually thus creating the appearance of being over 
budget. I have and will continue to monitor each department’s expenditures throughout the 
fiscal year. 
 

Investments  
 
This section contains an investment schedule as of December 31st.  Currently the City’s funds are 
earning an average interest rate of .1.77%. 
 
 
 
         
        Respectfully submitted, 

        
          

Jill M. Eastman 
 Finance Director 



 UNAUDITED UNAUDITED AUDITED

December 31 November 30 Increase JUNE 30

2018 2018 (Decrease) 2018

ASSETS

CASH 15,812,455$         20,719,702$       (4,907,247)$          11,450,641$       

RECEIVABLES -                        

  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 1,217,053             1,240,827           (23,774)                 1,941,626           

  TAXES RECEIVABLE-CURRENT 21,077,595           21,460,385         (382,790)               1,822,799           

  DELINQUENT TAXES 753,052                762,871              (9,819)                   664,795              

  TAX LIENS 946,866                1,036,886           (90,020)                 724,636              

  NET DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 2,581,298             (1,722,381)          4,303,679             3,182,810           

 

TOTAL ASSETS 42,388,319$         43,498,291$       (1,109,972)$          19,787,307$       

 

 

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES  

 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (73,349)$               (239,722)$           166,373$              (1,073,230)$        

PAYROLL LIABILITIES (455,504)               (1,216,072)          760,568                (709,471)             

ACCRUED PAYROLL (3,272)                   (3,272)                 -                        (2,771,642)          

STATE FEES PAYABLE (30,788)                 (24,451)               (6,337)                   

ESCROWED AMOUNTS (1,600)                   (1,600)                 -                        (1,600)                 

DEFERRED REVENUE (21,809,528)          (22,292,157)        482,629                (2,054,690)          

 

     TOTAL LIABILITIES (22,374,041)$        (23,777,273)$      1,403,233$           (6,610,633)$        

 

FUND BALANCE - UNASSIGNED/ASSIGNED (16,481,879)$        (16,188,619)$      (293,260)$             (9,644,275)$        

FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED (1,931,802)            (1,931,802)           (1,931,802)          

FUND BALANCE - NON SPENDABLE (1,600,597)            (1,600,597)          -                        (1,600,597)          

 

     TOTAL FUND BALANCE (20,014,278)$        (19,721,018)$      (293,260)$             (13,176,674)$      

 

  

     TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE (42,388,319)$        (43,498,291)$      1,109,972$           (19,787,307)$      

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

 BALANCE SHEET - CITY GENERAL FUND, WC AND UNEMPLOYMENT FUND 

AS of December 2018, November 2018,  and June 2018



REVENUES - GENERAL FUND COMPARATIVE

Unaudited  Unaudited  

FY 2019 EXP % OF FY 2018 EXP % OF  

DEPARTMENT BUDGET THRU DEC 2018 BUDGET BUDGET THRU DEC 2017 BUDGET VARIANCE

TAXES

  PROPERTY TAX REVENUE- 48,772,945$           28,103,068$      57.62% 48,061,530$     27,062,936$      56.31% 1,040,132$       

  PRIOR YEAR TAX REVENUE -$                        464,049$            -$                 659,083$            (195,034)$        

  HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION REIMBURSEMENT 1,190,000$             997,694$           83.84% 1,015,000$       821,845$           80.97% 175,849$          

  EXCISE 3,835,000$             2,062,922$        53.79% 3,810,000$       1,988,316$        52.19% 74,606$            

  PENALTIES & INTEREST 150,000$                63,851$             42.57% 150,000$          64,239$             42.83% (388)$               

     TOTAL TAXES 53,947,945$           31,691,583$      58.74% 53,036,530$     30,596,419$      57.69% 1,095,164$       

  

LICENSES AND PERMITS   

  BUSINESS 62,000$                  34,574$             55.76% 62,000$            28,645$             46.20% 5,929$              

  NON-BUSINESS 355,000$                224,828$           63.33% 345,000$          190,083$           55.10% 34,745$            

     TOTAL LICENSES 417,000$                259,402$           62.21% 407,000$          218,728$           53.74% 40,674$            

  

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE   

  STATE-LOCAL ROAD ASSISTANCE 400,000$                403,684$           100.92% 400,000$          406,860$           101.72% (3,176)$            

  STATE REVENUE SHARING 1,689,669$             845,687$           50.05% 1,509,117$       753,095$           49.90% 92,592$            

  WELFARE REIMBURSEMENT 103,747$                20,775$             20.02% 95,000$            71,477$             75.24% (50,702)$          

  OTHER STATE AID 32,000$                  11,185$             34.95% 32,000$            11,209$             35.03% (25)$                 

  CITY OF LEWISTON 228,384$                -$                   0.00% 228,384$          -$                   0.00% -$                 

     TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE 2,453,800$             1,281,331$        52.22% 2,264,501$       1,242,641$        54.87% 38,690$            

  

CHARGE FOR SERVICES   

  GENERAL GOVERNMENT 144,440$                93,920$             65.02% 144,440$          60,303$             41.75% 33,617$            

  PUBLIC SAFETY 236,277$                84,165$             35.62% 236,277$          78,722$             33.32% 5,443$              

  EMS TRANSPORT 1,250,000$             524,185$           41.93% 1,250,000$       463,986$           37.12% 60,199$            

     TOTAL CHARGE FOR SERVICES 1,630,717$             702,271$           43.07% 1,630,717$       603,011$           36.98% 99,260$            

  

FINES   

  PARKING TICKETS & MISC FINES 70,000$                  21,538$             30.77% 70,000$            21,498$             30.71% 40$                   

   

MISCELLANEOUS    

  INVESTMENT INCOME 32,000$                  42,907$             134.08% 32,000$            18,148$             56.71% 24,759$            

  RENTS 35,000$                  14,453$             41.29% 35,000$            21,449$             61.28% (6,997)$            

  UNCLASSIFIED 10,000$                  42,727$             427.27% 10,000$            17,452$             174.52% 25,275$            

  COMMERCIAL SOLID WASTE FEES -$                        32,430$              -$                 33,920$              (1,490)$            

  SALE OF PROPERTY 20,000$                  37,151$             185.75% 20,000$            10,882$             54.41% 26,269$            

  RECREATION PROGRAMS/ARENA   -$                 

  MMWAC HOST FEES 221,000$                112,869$           51.07% 215,000$          109,193$           50.79% 3,676$              

  TRANSFER IN: TIF 1,317,818$             -$                   0.00% 1,287,818$       -$                   0.00% -$                 

  TRANSFER IN: Other Funds 97,718$                  -$                   0.00% 54,718$            -$                   0.00% -$                 

  ENERGY EFFICIENCY   -$                 

  CDBG 214,430$                7,106$               3.31% 214,430$          9,668$               4.51% (2,562)$            

  UTILITY REIMBURSEMENT 27,500$                  6,711$               24.40% 27,500$            -$                   0.00% 6,711$              

  CITY FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 527,500$                -$                   0.00% 412,500$          -$                   0.00% -$                 

     TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 2,502,966$             296,353$           11.84% 2,308,966$       220,712$           9.56% 75,641$            

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES 61,022,428$           34,252,477$      56.13% 59,717,714$     32,903,009$      55.10% 1,349,468$       

SCHOOL REVENUES

  EDUCATION SUBSIDY 24,302,914$           10,500,823$      43.21% 22,039,568$     9,545,942$        43.31% 954,881$          

  EDUCATION 674,191$                137,167$           20.35% 811,744$          311,690$           38.40% (174,523)$        

  SCHOOL FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 719,417$                -$                   0.00% 906,882$          -$                   0.00% -$                 

TOTAL SCHOOL 25,696,522$           10,637,990$      41.40% 23,758,194$     9,857,632$        41.49% 780,358$          

GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 86,718,950$           44,890,467$      51.77% 83,475,908$     42,760,641$      51.23% 2,129,826$       

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

THROUGH December 31, 2018 VS December 31, 2017



Unaudited  Unaudited  

FY 2019 EXP % OF FY 2018 EXP % OF

DEPARTMENT BUDGET THRU DEC 2018 BUDGET BUDGET THRU DEC 2017 BUDGET VARIANCE

ADMINISTRATION

   MAYOR AND COUNCIL 111,610$              58,216$              52.16% 80,300$          38,537$              47.99% 19,679$        

   CITY MANAGER 474,086$              235,542$            49.68% 581,170$        254,402$            43.77% (18,860)$       

   CITY CLERK 185,898$              87,217$              46.92% 181,332$        94,139$              51.92% (6,922)$         

   FINANCIAL SERVICES 694,109$              343,390$            49.47% 675,239$        313,974$            46.50% 29,416$        

   HUMAN RESOURCES 149,953$              69,808$              46.55% 156,887$        74,043$              47.20% (4,235)$         

   INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 588,403$              322,978$            54.89% 531,551$        318,624$            59.94% 4,354$          

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 2,204,059$           1,117,151$         50.69% 2,206,479$     1,093,719$         49.57% 23,432$        

COMMUNITY SERVICES

   ECONOMIC & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 1,471,918$           508,432$            34.54% 1,717,028$     545,028$            31.74% (36,596)$       

   HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES 223,500$              77,716$              34.77% 220,870$        130,113$            58.91% (52,397)$       

   RECREATION & SPECIAL EVENTS 384,630$              203,087$            52.80% 388,581$        159,047$            40.93% 44,040$        

   PUBLIC LIBRARY 998,189$              547,495$            54.85% 998,189$        415,912$            41.67% 131,583$      

TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES 3,078,237$           1,336,730$         43.43% 3,324,668$     1,250,100$         37.60% 86,630$        

 

FISCAL SERVICES

   DEBT SERVICE 6,702,508$           6,156,417$         91.85% 6,366,533$     5,841,011$         91.75% 315,406$      

   FACILITIES 650,641$              272,610$            41.90% 640,201$        376,575$            58.82% (103,965)$     

   WORKERS COMPENSATION 581,360$              -$                        0.00% 555,164$        555,164$            100.00% (555,164)$     

   WAGES & BENEFITS 6,471,614$           2,939,590$         45.42% 5,960,970$     2,978,419$         49.97% (38,829)$       

   EMERGENCY RESERVE (10108062-670000) 431,003$              -$                        0.00% 415,454$        -$                        0.00% -$                  

TOTAL FISCAL SERVICES 14,837,126$         9,368,617$         63.14% 13,938,322$   9,751,169$         69.96% (382,552)$     

PUBLIC SAFETY

   FIRE DEPARTMENT 4,422,256$           2,048,363$         46.32% 4,227,575$     2,231,883$         52.79% (183,520)$     

   FIRE EMS 683,181$              346,473$            50.71% 708,828$        225,449$            31.81% 121,024$      

   POLICE DEPARTMENT 4,166,631$           1,934,176$         46.42% 4,043,998$     1,931,261$         47.76% 2,915$          

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 9,272,068$           4,329,012$         46.69% 8,980,401$     4,388,593$         48.87% (59,581)$       

PUBLIC WORKS

   PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 4,778,668$           2,189,465$         45.82% 4,611,116$     2,001,010$         43.40% 188,455$      

   SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL* 988,013$              463,590$            46.92% 964,118$        422,911$            43.87% 40,679$        

   WATER AND SEWER 645,216$              316,358$            49.03% 632,716$        328,858$            51.98% (12,500)$       

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 6,411,897$           2,969,413$         46.31% 6,207,950$     2,752,779$         44.34% 216,634$      

INTERGOVERNMENTAL PROGRAMS

   AUBURN-LEWISTON AIRPORT 172,000$              170,761$            99.28% 167,800$        162,838$            97.04% 7,923$          

   E911 COMMUNICATION CENTER 1,123,081$           669,252$            59.59% 1,088,857$     267,281$            24.55% 401,971$      

   LATC-PUBLIC TRANSIT 199,130$              199,130$            100.00% 189,949$        189,949$            100.00% 9,181$          

   TAX SHARING 270,000$              18,800$              6.96% 270,000$        16,809$              6.23% 1,991$          

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,764,211$           1,057,943$         59.97% 1,716,606$     636,877$            37.10% 421,066$      

COUNTY TAX 2,407,766$           2,407,765$         100.00% 2,296,224$     2,296,224$         100.00% 111,541$      

TIF (10108058-580000) 3,049,803$           -$                        0.00% 3,049,803$     -$                        0.00% -$                  

OVERLAY -$                          -$                         -$                   -$                        0.00% -$                  

-$                  

TOTAL CITY DEPARTMENTS 43,025,167$         22,586,631$       52.50% 41,720,453$   22,169,461$       53.14% 417,170$      

EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 43,693,783$         14,467,198$       33.11% 41,755,455$   14,517,805$       34.77% (50,607)$       

  

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 86,718,950$         37,053,829$       42.73% 83,475,908$   36,687,266$       43.95% 366,563$      

 CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

EXPENDITURES - GENERAL FUND COMPARATIVE

THROUGH December 31, 2018 VS December 31, 2017



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

INVESTMENT SCHEDULE

AS OF December 31, 2018

BALANCE BALANCE INTEREST

INVESTMENT FUND December 31, 2018 November 30, 2018 RATE

ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 449 CAPITAL PROJECTS 4,222,394.27$              1,220,965.85$              1.25%

ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 502 SR-TIF 1,021,579.04$              1,020,488.13$              1.25%

ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 836 GENERAL FUND 8,294,682.25$              8,287,334.92$              1.25%

ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 801 WORKERS COMP 51,034.47$                   50,979.98$                   1.25%

ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 684 EMS CAPITAL RESERVE 32,360.40$                   32,325.86$                   1.25%

ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 414 INGERSOLL TURF FACILITY 85,517.73$                   85,426.42$                   1.25%

NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 CAPITAL PROJECTS 750,000.00$                 750,000.00$                 2.30%

NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 250,000.00$                 250,000.00$                 1.50%

NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 500,000.00$                 500,000.00$                 1.90%

NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 250,000.00$                 250,000.00$                 2.00%

NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 500,000.00$                 500,000.00$                 2.15%

NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 500,000.00$                 500,000.00$                 2.30%

NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 250,000.00$                 250,000.00$                 2.60%

NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 500,000.00$                 500,000.00$                 2.55%

GRAND TOTAL 17,207,568.16$            14,197,521.16$            1.77%



Beginning Ending
Balance Balance

12/01/18 New Charges Payments Refunds Adjustments Write-Offs 12/31/2018

Bluecross 3,639.05$       12,286.20$      (2,291.69)$       (2,581.28)$         11,052.28$    
Intercept 200.00$          (100.00)$           100.00$          
Medicare 38,040.49$     94,531.40$      (35,981.14)$     (50,763.48)$      45,827.27$    
Medicaid 15,080.33$     25,258.20$      (10,993.89)$     (6,598.96)$         22,745.68$    
Other/Commercial 58,237.02$     20,679.20$      (20,018.37)$     (18,572.02)$      40,325.83$    
Patient 129,308.42$  8,533.60$        (6,864.64)$       10,262.32$        141,239.70$  
Worker's Comp (1,025.85)$     1,880.60$        (675.20)$           (1,025.85)$         (846.30)$        

TOTAL 243,479.46$  163,169.20$   (76,924.93)$     -$                 (69,279.27)$      -$                  260,444.46$  

December 2018

EMS BILLING 
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITY

July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019
Report as of December 31, 2018



July August Sept Oct Nov Dec % of
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 Adjustment Totals Total

No Insurance Information 10,977.40$    2,518.00$       1,550.40$      3,166.60$       4,538.40$       1,371.40$       (22,750.80)$  1,371.40$          0.12%
Bluecross 6,344.40$       8,486.40$       4,124.40$       7,998.20$       2,676.20$       12,286.20$    2,761.00$      44,676.80$        3.89%
Intercept 200.00$          100.00$          300.00$          100.00$          700.00$              0.06%
Medicare 103,152.60$  132,913.20$  118,842.80$  122,609.60$  97,778.80$    94,531.40$    16,490.40$    686,318.80$      59.69%
Medicaid 30,752.80$    47,771.60$    30,102.60$    31,127.20$    27,115.80$    25,258.20$    (454.00)$        191,674.20$      16.67%
Other/Commercial 24,030.40$    19,494.00$    13,526.00$    21,522.60$    25,029.40$    19,307.80$    1,818.80$      124,729.00$      10.85%
Patient 19,183.20$    17,841.80$    12,560.00$    15,276.60$    17,126.80$    8,533.60$       1,266.40$      91,788.40$        7.98%
Worker's Comp 2,425.60$       901.80$          1,591.00$       908.80$          1,880.60$       868.20$         8,576.00$          0.75%

 
TOTAL 197,066.40$  230,026.80$  182,297.20$  202,909.60$  174,365.40$  163,169.20$  0.00$              1,149,834.60$  100.00%

July August Sept Oct Nov Dec % of
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 Adjustment Totals Total

No Insurance Information 14 3 2 4 5 2 30 2.07%
Bluecross 8 10 5 10 3 15 51 3.51%
Intercept 2 1 0 3 1 0 7 0.48%
Medicare 129 164 148 153 119 116 829 57.13%
Medicaid 39 60 38 42 33 32 244 16.82%
Other/Commercial 35 27 17 28 34 25 166 11.44%
Patient 23 23 16 19 23 11 115 7.93%
Worker's Comp 3 1 2 1 0 2 9 0.62%

TOTAL 253 289 228 260 218 203 0 1451 100.00%

Report as of December 31, 2018
July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019

EMS BILLING 
BREAKDOWN -TOTAL CHARGES

July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019

EMS BILLING 
BREAKDOWN -TOTAL COUNT

Report as of December 31, 2018



Current 31-60 61-90 91-120 121+ days Totals

Bluecross 12,012.97$     109% -$                 0% 82.58$            1% -$                 0% (1,043.27)$         -9% 11,052.28$         4.24%
Intercept 100.00$          -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                    100.00$               0.04%
Medicare 44,913.00$     98% 409.18$          1% 890.60$          2% -$                 0% (385.51)$             -1% 45,827.27$         17.60%
Medicaid 20,379.35$     90% 2,108.80$       9% 71.56$            0% -$                 0% 185.97$              1% 22,745.68$         8.73%
Other/Commercial 22,174.61$     55% 7,693.65$       19% 4,504.16$       11% 0% 5,953.41$           15% 40,325.83$         15.48%
Patient 30,562.38$     22% 31,228.94$     22% 23,824.10$     17% 15,805.61$     11% 39,818.67$        28% 141,239.70$       54.23%
Worker's Comp 179.55$          (1,025.85)$     -$                 -$                 -$                    (846.30)$              -0.32%

TOTAL 130,321.86$  40,414.72$     29,373.00$     15,805.61$     44,529.27$        260,444.46$       

50% 16% 11% 6% 17% 100% 100.00%

EMS BILLING 
AGING REPORT

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019
Report as of December 31, 2018



CITY OF AUBURN
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
As of December 31, 2018

. 1902 1905 1910 1913 1914 1915 1917 1922 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931
Winter Community Police Fitness Oak Hill Fire Training Wellness Walmart Healthy Insurance Fire 211

Riverwatch Festival Service Equipment Cemeteries Building Grant Risk/Homeless Androscoggin Reimbursement Vending Prevention Fairview Donations
Fund Balance 7/1/18 969,900.91$    (5,390.23)$             5,008.52$         5,112.53$            30,205.71$           (488.84)$              4,851.85$            7,278.18$            3,368.05$             925.21$                -$                    4,791.12$           (566,303.71)$          1,084.69$          

Revenues FY19 40,154.73$      233.00$            700.00$                5,253.61$            1,836.00$             548.00$              

Expenditures FY19 139,479.00$    1,975.00$               343.00$               1,636.76$            672.96$              100.26$             

Fund Balance 12/31/18 870,576.64$   (7,365.23)$             5,241.52$         4,769.53$            30,905.71$           (488.84)$              8,468.70$            7,278.18$            5,204.05$             925.21$                (124.96)$             4,791.12$          (566,303.71)$          984.43$             

2003 2005 2006 2007 2008 2010 2013 2014 2019 2020 2025 2030 2032 2033
Byrne Seatbelt Homeland State Drug OUI Speed Law Enforcement Community Safe School/

JAG MDOT PEACE Grant Security Money Grant Grant Training CDBG Cords Parking HEAPP Health (COPS)
Fund Balance 7/1/18 2,808.57$        (101,600.31)$         2,099.08$         4,322.93$            (110,031.67)$       6,158.77$            9,263.39$            6,931.00$            (7,637.91)$            4,261,266.85$      30,846.63$         (47,430.39)$       (4,994.50)$              (15,906.07)$       

Revenues FY19 86,573.34$           11,940.54$          4,764.00$            9,924.00$            965.00$                288,878.18$         5,878.10$           85,184.00$        

Expenditures FY19 54,252.92$            514.88$            87,340.97$           12,350.22$          4,659.67$            6,310.15$            765.00$                461,546.93$         1,357.60$           82,695.91$        

Fund Balance 12/31/18 2,808.57$        (155,853.23)$         1,584.20$         4,322.93$            (110,799.30)$       5,749.09$            9,367.72$            10,544.85$          (7,437.91)$            4,088,598.10$      35,367.13$         (44,942.30)$       (4,994.50)$              (15,906.07)$       

2037 2038 2040 2041 2044 2045 2046 2048 2050 2051 2052 2053 2054 2055
Bulletproof Community Great Falls Blanche Federal Drug Forest Joint Land Use TD Tree Project Project Nature St Louis EMS Transport Work4ME-

Vests Action Team TV Stevens Money Management Study Days Grant Lifesaver Canopy Conservancy Bells Capital Reserve PAL
Fund Balance 7/1/18 11,994.90$      7,206.21$               20,536.23$       24,233.19$          36,044.77$           4,436.52$            0.57$                   -$                     89.35$                   (420.71)$               975.05$              1,607.75$           32,161.59$             (13,692.41)$       

Revenues FY19 5,649.19$        3,940.00$            26,763.22$           10,400.00$          8,359.06$             164.27$                  

Expenditures FY19 4,710.15$        1,639.20$            4,440.68$             91.18$                 7,938.35$             28,984.00$             18,848.36$        

Fund Balance 12/31/18 12,933.94$      7,206.21$              20,536.23$       26,533.99$          58,367.31$           4,345.34$            0.57$                   10,400.00$          89.35$                   -$                      975.05$              1,607.75$          3,341.86$               (32,540.77)$       

2056 2057 2058 2059 2060 2061 2062 2201 2500
Lake Auburn ASPCA Barker Mills Distracted My Life 150th Employee EDI Parks &

Neighborhood Grant Greenway Driving My Choice JJAG Celebration Store Grant Recreation
Fund Balance 7/1/18 125.00$           800.00$                  (2,597.43)$        (10,736.00)$        -$                      (3,154.86)$          36.73$                 (1,484,407.18)$   152,783.45$         

Revenues FY19 33,893.00$          78,090.00$          1,748.27$            116,407.85$         

Expenditures FY19 14,328.00$          31,426.59$          756.68$               216,811.41$         

Fund Balance 12/31/18 125.00$           800.00$                  (2,597.43)$        8,829.00$            -$                      43,508.55$          1,028.32$            (1,484,407.18)$   52,379.89$           

2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 Total
Tambrands J Enterprises Tambrands II J & A Properties Formed Fiber Mall Downtown Safe Handling Auburn Industrial Auburn Plaza Auburn Plaza II Webster School Bedard Pharm Slapshot LLC Hartt  Transport Special

TIF 4 TIF 5 TIF 6 TIF 7 TIF 8 TIF 9 TIF 10 TIF 11 TIF 12 TIF 13 TIF 14 TIF 16 TIF 17 TIF 18 TIF 19 Revenues
Fund Balance 7/1/18 1,841.15$        (6,499.56)$             (330,682.42)$    2,558.27$            486.17$                2,083.99$            257,728.49$        183.21$               (338,049.92)$        50,325.30$           3,883.14$           348.35$              1,366.79$               (61.12)$              (18.32)$              2,919,956.60$   

Revenues FY19 828,247.36$      

Expenditures FY19 368,202.73$        176,585.00$         78,332.91$           600,629.37$       15,375.19$        70,524.00$        2,495,625.03$   

Fund Balance 11/30/18 1,841.15$        (6,499.56)$             (330,682.42)$    2,558.27$            486.17$                2,083.99$            (110,474.24)$      183.21$               (514,634.92)$        (28,007.61)$          (596,746.23)$      (15,026.84)$       1,366.79$               (70,585.12)$       (18.32)$              1,252,578.93$   



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

 
To: Peter Crichton, City Manager 
From: Jill Eastman, Finance Director 
Re: Financial Reports for December 2018  
 
Attached you will find a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities and budget to actual 
reports for Ingersoll Turf Facility for revenue and expenditures as of December 31, 2018.  
 

INGERSOLL TURF FACILITY 
 
Statement of Net Assets: 
The Statement of Net Assets lists current assets, noncurrent assets, liabilities and net assets as of 
December 31, 2018.  
 
Current Assets: 
As of the end of December 2018 the total current assets of Ingersoll Turf Facility were $131,906. This 
consisted cash and cash equivalents of $85,426 and of an interfund receivable of $46,480 an increase 
from November of $13,738.  
 
Noncurrent Assets: 
Ingersoll’s noncurrent assets are the building and equipment that was purchased, less depreciation. The 
total value of the noncurrent assets as of December 31, 2018 was $172,719.  
 
Liabilities: 
Ingersoll had no accounts payable as of December 31, 2018.  
 
Statement of Activities: 
 
The statement of activities shows the current operating revenue collected for the fiscal year and the 
operating expenses as well as any nonoperating revenue and expenses. 
 
The operating revenues for Ingersoll Turf Facility through December 2018 are $99,551. This revenue 
comes from the sponsorships, programs, rental income and batting cages. 
 
The operating expenses for Ingersoll Turf Facility through December 2018 were $48,548. These 
expenses include personnel costs, supplies, utilities, repairs, capital purchases and maintenance.  
 

As of December 2018, Ingersoll has an operating gain of $51,003 compared to a net gain in November of 
$36,709.  
 

As of December 31, 2018, Ingersoll has an increase in net assets of $51,003. 
 
The budget to actual reports for revenue and expenditures, show that the revenue for FY19 compared 
to FY 18.  
 



Dec 31, Nov 30, Increase/

2018 2018 (Decrease)

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 85,426$     85,340$       86$             

Interfund receivables/payables 46,480$     32,742$       13,738        

Accounts receivable -                 -                   -                  

Total current assets 131,906     118,082       13,824        

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:

Buildings 672,279     672,279       -                  

Equipment 119,673     119,673       -                  

Land improvements 18,584       18,584         -                  

     Less accumulated depreciation (637,817)    (637,817)      -                  

Total noncurrent assets 172,719     172,719       -                  

Total assets 304,625     290,801       13,824        

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable -$               470$            (470)            

Interfund payable -$               -$                 -                  

Total liabilities -                 470              (470)            

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets 172,719$   172,719$     -$                

Unrestricted 131,906$   117,612$     14,294$      

Total net assets 304,625$   290,331$     14,294$      

Statement of Net Assets

Ingersoll Turf Facility

December 31, 2018

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Fund



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Ingersoll Turf Facility

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Statement of Activities

 December 31, 2018

Ingersoll
Turf

Facility
Operating revenues:

Charges for services 99,551$         

Operating expenses:
Personnel 34,524            
Supplies 5,774              
Utilities 6,262              
Repairs and maintenance 1,988              
Rent -                      
Depreciation -                      
Capital expenses -                      
Other expenses -                      

Total operating expenses 48,548            

Operating  gain (loss) 51,003            

Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest income -                      
Interest expense (debt service) -                      

Total nonoperating expense -                      

Gain (Loss) before transfer 51,003            

Transfers out -                      

Change in net assets 51,003            

Total net assets, July 1 253,622         

Total net assets, December 31, 2018 304,625$       



ACTUAL ACTUAL

FY 2019 REVENUES % OF FY 2018 REVENUES % OF

REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET THRU DEC 2018 BUDGET BUDGET THRU DEC 2017 BUDGET

 

CHARGE FOR SERVICES  

  Sponsorship 20,500$           8,300$                  40.49% 17,000$            6,250$                  36.76%

  Batting Cages 12,240$           6,060$                  49.51% 11,520$            6,253$                  54.28%

  Programs 90,000$           41,812$                46.46% 80,000$            36,025$                45.03%

  Rental Income 102,300$         43,293$                42.32% 103,650$          22,342$                21.56%

     TOTAL CHARGE FOR SERVICES 225,040$         99,465$                44.20% 212,170$          70,870$                33.40%

  

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 86$                       -$                      

GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 225,040$         99,551$                44.24% 212,170$          70,870$                33.40%

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

REVENUES - INGERSOLL TURF FACILITY

Through December 31, 2018 compared to December 31, 2017



ACTUAL ACTUAL

FY 2019 EXPENDITURES % OF FY 2018 EXPENDITURES % OF

DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU DEC 2018 BUDGET BUDGET THRU DEC 2017 BUDGET Difference

  Salaries & Benefits 120,000$            34,524$                28.77% 106,624$       44,433$                41.67% (9,909)$           
  Purchased Services 19,460$              1,988$                  10.22% 21,110$         3,647$                  17.28% (1,659)$           
  Programs 15,220$              0.00% 7,000$           4,047$                  57.81% (4,047)$           
  Supplies 4,600$                5,774$                  125.52% 5,000$           149$                     2.98% 5,625$            
  Utilities 30,920$              6,262$                  20.25% 39,720$         5,539$                  13.95% 723$               
  Insurance Premiums 2,505$                -$                      0.00% 2,431$           -$                      0.00% -$                
  Capital Outlay 30,000$              -$                      0.00% 42,490$         33,048$                77.78% (33,048)$        

222,705$            48,548$                21.80% 224,375$       90,863$                40.50% (42,315)$        
  

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 222,705$            48,548$                21.80% 224,375$       90,863$                40.50% (42,315)$        

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

EXPENDITURES - INGERSOLL TURF FACILITY

Through December 31, 2018 compared to December 31, 2017



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

To: Peter Crichton, City Manager 
From: Jill Eastman, Finance Director 
Re: Arena Financial Reports for December 31, 2018  
 
Attached you will find a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities and budget to actual 
reports for Norway Savings Bank Arena for revenue and expenditures as of December 31, 2018.  
 
NORWAY SAVINGS BANK ARENA 
 
Statement of Net Assets: 
The Statement of Net Assets lists current assets, noncurrent assets, liabilities and net assets and shows a 
comparison to the previous month, in this case, November 30, 2018.  
 
Current Assets: 
As of the end of December 2018 the total current assets of Norway Savings Bank Arena were 
($1,261,210). These consisted of cash and cash equivalents of $123,015, accounts receivable of 
$139,552, and an interfund payable of $1,523,777. 
 
Noncurrent Assets: 
Norway’s noncurrent assets are equipment that was purchased, less depreciation (depreciation is 
posted at year end). The total value of the noncurrent assets as of December 31, 2018 was $342,462.  
 
Liabilities: 
Norway Arena had accounts payable of $1,923 as of December 31, 2018.  
 
Statement of Activities: 
 
The statement of activities shows the current operating revenue collected for the fiscal year and the 
operating expenses as well as any nonoperating revenue and expenses. 
 
The operating revenues for Norway Arena through December 2018 are $516,558. This revenue comes 
from the concessions, sign advertisements, pro shop lease, youth programming, shinny hockey, public 
skating and ice rentals. 
 
The operating expenses for Norway Arena through December 2018 were $613,975. These expenses 
include personnel costs, supplies, utilities, repairs, rent, capital purchases and maintenance.  
 
As of December 2018, Norway Arena has an operating loss of $97,417 compared to the November 2018 
operating loss of $88,638 an increase in the operating loss for the fiscal year of $8,779. 
 
As of December 31, 2018, Norway Arena has a decrease in net assets of $97,417. 
 
The budget to actual reports for revenue and expenditures, with comparison to the same period last 
year show that revenue for FY19 is $15,953 more than in FY18 and expenditures in FY19 are $568 more 
than last year in December. 



December 31, November 30, Increase/

2018 2018 (Decrease)

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 123,015$         108,323$               14,692$          

Interfund receivables (1,523,777)$     (1,460,035)$           (63,742)$         

Prepaid Rent -$                     -$                           -$                    

Accounts receivable 139,552           101,539                 38,013$          

Total current assets (1,261,210)       (1,250,173)             (11,037)           

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:

Buildings 58,223             58,223                   -                      

Equipment 514,999           514,999                 -                      

Land improvements -                       -                              -                      

     Less accumulated depreciation (230,760)          (230,760)                -                      

Total noncurrent assets 342,462           342,462                 -                      

Total assets (918,748)          (907,711)                (11,037)           

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 1,923$             4,181$                   (2,258)$           

Net pension liability 170,806           170,806                 -                      

Total liabilities 172,729           174,987                 (2,258)             

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets 342,462$         342,462$               -$                    

Unrestricted (1,433,939)$     (1,425,160)$           (8,779)$           

Total net assets (1,091,477)$     (1,082,698)$           (8,779)$           

Statement of Net Assets

Norway Savings Bank Arena

December 31, 2018

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Fund

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Norway Savings Bank Arena

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Statement of Activities

 December 31, 2018

Norway
Savings
Arena

Operating revenues:
Charges for services 516,558$       

Operating expenses:
Personnel 166,211         
Supplies 17,717            
Utilities 125,511         
Repairs and maintenance 17,754            
Rent 253,242         
Depreciation -                      
Capital expenses 19,156            
Other expenses 14,384            

Total operating expenses 613,975         

Operating  gain (loss) (97,417)          

Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest income -                      
Interest expense (debt service) -                      

Total nonoperating expense -                      

Gain (Loss) before transfer (97,417)          

Transfers out -                      

Change in net assets (97,417)          

Total net assets, July 1 (994,060)        

Total net assets, December 31, 2018 (1,091,477)$   



ACTUAL ACTUAL

FY 2019 REVENUES % OF FY 2018 REVENUES % OF

REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET THRU DEC 2018 BUDGET BUDGET THRU DEC 2017 BUDGET VARIANCE

  

CHARGE FOR SERVICES   

  Concssions 18,000$            7,500$                  41.67% 18,000$            1,125$                  6.25% 6,375$        
  Vending Machines -$                 2,739$                   -$                  3,746$                   (1,007)$      
  Skate Rentals -$                 1,010$                   -$                  1,762$                   (752)$          
  Sponsorships 275,000$          100,600$              36.58% 275,000$          112,018$              40.73% (11,418)$    
  Pro Shop 8,500$              3,013$                  35.45% 8,500$              1,663$                  19.56% 1,350$        
  Programs 31,000$            0.00% 31,000$            18,212$                58.75% (18,212)$    
  Rental Income 705,250$          377,691$              53.55% 705,250$          321,191$              45.54% 56,500$     
  Camps/Clinics 50,000$            12,480$                24.96% 50,000$            27,838$                (15,358)$    
  Tournaments 50,000$            11,525$                23.05% 50,000$            13,050$                26.10% (1,525)$      

     TOTAL CHARGE FOR SERVICES 1,137,750$       516,558$              45.40% 1,137,750$       500,605$              44.00% 15,953$     

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

REVENUES - NORWAY SAVINGS BANK ARENA

Through December 31, 2018 compared to December 31, 2017



ACTUAL ACTUAL

FY 2019 EXPENDITURES % OF FY 2018 EXPENDITURES % OF

DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU DEC 2018 BUDGET BUDGET THRU DEC 2017 BUDGET VARIANCE

 

 

  Salaries & Benefits 344,000$            166,211$              48.32% 311,000$          187,328$              60.23% (21,117)$    
  Purchased Services 71,656$              32,138$                44.85% 87,306$            24,425$                27.98% 7,713$       
  Supplies 37,100$              17,717$                47.75% 37,150$            24,386$                65.64% (6,669)$      
  Utilities 225,150$            125,511$              55.75% 199,800$          111,441$              55.78% 14,070$     
  Capital Outlay 103,500$            19,156$                18.51% 57,000$            12,585$                22.08% 6,571$       
  Rent 507,000$            253,242$              49.95% 507,000$          253,242$              49.95% -$            

1,288,406$         613,975$              47.65% 1,199,256$       613,407$              51.15% 568$          

  

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,288,406$         613,975$              47.65% 1,199,256$       613,407$              51.15% 568$           

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE

EXPENDITURES - NORWAY SAVINGS BANK ARENA

Through December 31, 2018 compared to December 31, 2017


	0  Agenda 1-28-2019
	1  Info sheet and docs citizens petition
	1  Info Sheet - Citizen Petition

	2  Info Sheet - FY2020 Budget Presentation
	2a  Budget Presentation 01-28-19
	2b  Department Profiles
	CM
	Finance
	Clerk
	Police
	Fire
	PW
	ECD
	REC
	HR
	IT
	Health SS
	911

	3  Info Sheet - Chestnut Street
	3a  Chestnut Street Traffic Calming Estimate
	3b  Chestnut Street Traffic Calming - nts
	4  Executive Session Info Sheet Econ Dev - Gracelawn
	5  Minutes 1-7-2019
	6  Minutes 1-23-2019 
	7  Info Sheet - Niskayuna Discontinuance 1.28.19
	7a  Notices signed
	7b  Oder . Certified
	7c  2 16-010 DISCONTINUANCE RV 9-4-18
	8  Info Sheet   Side By Each Brewing Co.
	8a  Side By Each Applications
	State Liquor Application
	Special Amusement app

	8b  Hearing Ad - Side By Each 2019
	8c  Order 09-01282019 Side By Each Brewing Co.
	9  Info Sheet - board and committee appointments
	9a  VACANCIE1
	9aa  Applicant Spreadsheet
	9b  Planning Board Apps
	9c  Paula Curtis-Everett Apps
	9d  Michael Thurston appl
	9e  Dana Staples Complete Streets App
	9f  Wayne Werts 911 Committee Application
	9g  Sewer Dist App
	10  Order 10-01282019 Planning Board Appt
	11  Order 11-01282019 Planning Board Appt
	12  Order 12-01282019 P&R Advisory Board Appt
	13  Order 13-01282019 P&R Advisory Board Appt
	14  Order 14-01282019 Complete Streets Appt
	15  Order 15-01282019 LA911 Appt
	16  Info Sheet - Assessor Appointment
	16a  Order 16-01282019 Assessor Appointment - 2019
	17  Final December 2018 Finance Report
	Financial Report December 2018 Gen Fund.pdf
	BS
	rev
	exp
	inv summary

	EMS Billing breakdown fy 19 December.pdf
	Dec 2018 Summary
	Dec 2018
	Dec aging

	special revenue funds as of 123118.pdf
	2019

	Ingersoll Turf Facility Monthly Report-December 2018.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement
	Revenue
	Expenditures

	Norway Savings Bank Arena Monthly Report- December 2018.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement
	Revenue
	Expenditures





